
 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Agenda 
February 9, 2015 

(POSTPONED for February 2, 2015) 
Regular Meeting - 7:00 P.M. 

Council Chambers 
Town Hall 

85 Union Street 
 
Roll Call of Members 
 
Acknowledgement of Meeting Notice 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Adjustments to Agenda 
 
Public Comments 
 
Correspondence 
 
Committee Reports 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 

a) Reminder of Council workshop with the Conservation Commission on February 5th 
b) Municipal Budget development 
c) Storm recap 

 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
10. The Town Council will hear public comments on an amendment to Chapter 15 of the 

Code of Ordinances (Traffic and Vehicles) to restrict overnight parking on a section of 
Page Street between the hours of 1:00 A.M. and 6:00 A.M. to parking by residential 
permit, with the amendment to be adopted on an emergency and regular basis, and will 
take any appropriate action. (Councilor Millett) 

PUBLIC HEARING/ACTION 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
11. The Town Council will consider setting a public hearing for February 23, 2015, on 

amendments to Chapter 11 “Marine Activities, Structures and Ways” relative to a Harbor 
Ordinance and mooring requirements, and will take any appropriate action. (Councilor S. 
Wilson and Councilor Walker) 

ACTION 
 
12. The Town Council will consider setting a public hearing for February 23, 2015, for 

amendments to Chapter 12, “Personnel Ordinance” to clarify language regarding vacation 
time accumulation and use, and will take any appropriate action. (Manager) 

1 
 



ACTION 
 
13. The Town Council will consider adopting the “Resolution to Authorize the Town Council 

Chair to Take Actions Necessary to Complete the Settlement and Recommitment of the 
Balance Due on the Outstanding Tax Lists,” and will take any appropriate action. 
(Manager) 

ACTION 
 
14. The Town Council will consider changes to the Council Rules of Order and Procedure 

relative to the order of agenda items, expanding the consent agenda, and outlining public 
hearing procedures, and will take any appropriate action.  (Manager)   

ACTION 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 

a) Approval of the Minutes of January 20, 2015  
b) Approval of historical society request for the overnight use of the mall for Chamberlain 

Days  
c) Authorization to accept and expend funds in the form of Maine Bureau of Highway 

Safety reimbursements for Police Department equipment   
 
Executive Session: Property Acquisition [1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(C)] 
 

INDIVIDUALS NEEDING AUXILIARY AIDS FOR EFFECTIVE 
COMMUNICATION SHOULD CONTACT  

THE TOWN MANAGER’S OFFICE AT 725-6659 (TDD 725-5521) 
 
 
  

2 
 



Brunswick Town Council 
Agenda  

February 2, 2015 
Council Notes and Suggested Motions 

 
ADJUSTMENT TO AGENDA 
 
Move the Consent Agenda after the Manager’s Report 
 
COUNCIL COMMITTEE UPDATES 
 
Council Committee updates will be done after correspondence.  Councilors with information on 
the Committees they are involved with will share information with the Council and public.  Chair 
Brayman will be making appointments to the TIF Committee. 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 

a) Reminder of Council workshop with the Conservation Commission on February 5th:  This 
item is to remind the Council of the upcoming Council workshop with the Conservation 
Commission.  It is scheduled for Thursday, February 5th, beginning at 6:00 p.m. 

 
b) Municipal Budget development: This item is to briefly discuss the upcoming budget 

process. 
 

c) Storm recap:  This item is to recap the recent storms and clean-up. 
 
There are no motions required for items on the Manager’s Report. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
10. This item, sponsored by Councilor Millett, is the public hearing to consider adopting an 

amendment to Chapter 15 of the Code of Ordinances (Traffic and Vehicles) to restrict 
overnight parking on Page Street between the hours of 1:00 A.M. and 6:00 A.M. to 
parking by residential permit.  This item is being considered for both emergency and 
regular adoption.  Emergency ordinances require six affirmative votes from the Council 
in order to be enacted.  The street has been temporarily posted by the Police Chief as no 
parking.  Copies of memos from the Town Manager and Commander Waltz, along with 
the draft amendments and data on parking on surrounding streets, are included in your 
packet. 

 
Suggested motion: 
Motion to adopt an amendment to Chapter 15 of the Code of Ordinances (Traffic and 
Vehicles) to restrict overnight parking on a section of Page Street (between Maine Street 
and Union Street) between the hours of 1:00 A.M. and 6:00 A.M. to parking by 
residential permit, with the amendment to be adopted on an emergency and regular basis.   

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

3 
 



11. This item, sponsored by Councilor S. Wilson and Councilor Walker, is the recommended 
ordinance language from the Rivers and Coastal Waters Committee.  The Council will be 
considering setting a public hearing for February 23, 2015, on amendments to Chapter 11 
“Marine Activities, Structures and Ways” relative to a Harbor Management Ordinance 
and mooring requirements.  Copies of a memo from the Commission and the draft 
language are included in your packet. 

 
Suggested motion: 
Motion to set a public hearing for February 23, 2015, on amendments to Chapter 11 
“Marine Activities, Structures and Ways” relative to a Harbor Ordinance and mooring 
requirements. 

 
12. This item is to consider setting a public hearing for February 23, 2015, for amendments 

to Chapter 12, “Personnel Ordinance” to clarify language regarding vacation time 
accumulation and use.  The proposed amendment to the Personnel Policy will require that 
exceeding the maximum allowable accrued balance can only be accomplished with a 
written request and written approval. Under the proposed amendment, the authorization 
to exceed the maximum shall expire the following year unless another exception is 
requested and approved in writing. The amendment also makes it clear that compliance 
with the policy will be measured each June 30th. The measurement date is consistent 
with the Town’s past practice.  Copies of a memo from Manager Eldridge, the proposal 
language, and sample exception form are included in your packet. 

 
Suggested motion: 
Motion to set a public hearing for February 23, 2015, for amendments to Chapter 12, 
“Personnel Ordinance” to clarify language regarding vacation time accumulation and use. 

 
13. This item is for the Council to consider adopting the “Resolution to Authorize the Town 

Council Chair to Take Actions Necessary to Complete the Settlement and Recommitment 
of the Balance Due on the Outstanding Tax Lists.”  With the appointment of Julie Henze 
to the position of Finance Director, she will also assume the titles and associated 
responsibilities of Treasurer and Tax Collector of the Town.  State law establishes the 
duties and liabilities of the Tax Collector, and has specific requirements for the transition 
to a new Tax Collector.  These involve a formal settlement of the list of taxes due with 
the outgoing Tax Collector, and recommitment of the same list of taxes due with the 
incoming Tax Collector.  Copies of the memo from Manager Eldridge and the draft 
resolution are included in your packet. 

 
Suggested motion: 
Motion to adopt the “Resolution to Authorize the Town Council Chair to Take Actions 
Necessary to Complete the Settlement and Recommitment of the Balance Due on the 
Outstanding Tax Lists.” 

 
 
14. This item is to consider amendments to the Council Rules of Order and Procedure, as 

discussed at the last meeting.   The first amendment will change the order of agenda 
items, which will allow the Consent Agenda to appear earlier in the meeting for standard 
approvals, not both on the Manager’s Report and Consent Agenda.  This also allows the 

4 
 



Council to pull an item on the Consent Agenda and make it an action item, if they feel 
more discussion is required. The proposal also looks to provide additional explanation on 
the public hearing procedures. A copy of the draft changes is included in your packet. 

 
Suggested motion: 
Motion to adopt changes to the Council Rules of Order and Procedure relative to the 
order of agenda items, expanding the consent agenda, and public hearing procedures. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 

a) Approval of the Minutes of January 20, 2015:  A copy of the minutes is included in your 
packet. 

b) Approval of historical society request for the overnight use of the mall for Chamberlain 
Days:  This request is for approval to use the mall to hold a Civil War event from August 
7 to 9, 2015.  The approval is under Chapter 10-26(14) of the ordinance.  This approval 
will also waive the fee.  This event has occurred in the past, and received Council’s 
approval for overnight use.  A copy of the letter of request is included in your packet. 

c) Authorization to accept and expend funds in the form of Maine Bureau of Highway 
Safety reimbursements for Police Department equipment:  This item is to authorize this 
expenditure.  The Bureau of Highway Safety is offering to reimburse 75% of the cost on 
purchases of equipment focused on impaired driving and speed.  The Police are in need 
of a new radar unit in one of their cruisers, and had planned on making this 
purchase.  The cost of the radar unit is $2,128.00.  The actual net cost to the Town of 
Brunswick for this unit will be $532.00, with BHS reimbursing $1,596.00.  A copy of the 
letter from BHS is included in your packet. 

 
The Council always has the option to remove an item(s) from the Consent Agenda to be 
considered separately. 
 

Suggested motion: 
Motion to approve the Consent Agenda 
 
 

Executive Session: Property Acquisition [1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(C)] 
 
Suggested motion: 
Motion to go into executive session to discuss Property Acquisition per 1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(C). 
 

 
Suggested motion: 
Motion to adjourn the meeting 

 

5 
 



 
 

 
MR A through MR C 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



 
 

 
ITEM 10 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



MEMORANDUM	
	
	
TO:	 Town	Council	
	
FROM:	 John	Eldridge	
	 Town	Manager	
	
DATE:	 January	27,	2015	
	
RE:	 Page	Street	Parking	
	
	
Attached	is	the	ordinance	amendment	proposed	by	Councilor	Millett	that	would	prohibit,	without	a	
residential	permit,	parking	on	Page	Street	(Maine	Street	to	Union	Street)	between	the	hours	of	1:00	
AM	and	6:00	AM.		With	six	affirmative	votes,	the	proposed	amendment	may	be	adopted	on	an	
emergency	basis.		Since	the	ordinance	has	been	advertised,	it	may	also	be	adopted	on	a	regular	basis	
by	a	simple	majority	vote.		Ordinances	adopted	on	a	regular	basis	take	effect	thirty	days	after	passage.	
	
Also	attached	is	a	table	illustrating	the	parking	restrictions	for	streets	in	the	vicinity	of	Page	Street	as	
well	as	a	map	depicting	the	housing	units	associated	with	each	of	the	lots	on	the	street.		Attached	as	
well	is	a	memo	from	Commander	Waltz	describing	the	various	alternatives	we	had	been	asked	to	
review.	
	
As	you	know,	the	Police	Department	issued	an	emergency	parking	ban	for	the	section	of	Page	Street	
between	Maine	Street	and	Union	Street.		The	emergency	ban	is	set	to	expire	on	February	3rd	but	it	
may	be	extended	should	conditions	warrant.			
	
This	item	was	sponsored	by	Councilor	Millett.		Staff	will	be	available	to	present	at	the	public	hearing	
and	to	answer	questions.	
	
	
Attachments	



 

 

 EMERGENCY CHANGES TO PARKING ON PAGE STREET 

 

 

 

WHEREAS, cars not owned by Page Street residents are parking on Page Street for long periods of time; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, large numbers of cars parked on the street for long periods has led to a situation where the 

travelled portion of the way is narrowed to such an extent that large emergency vehicles would have difficulty 

getting down the street and in the event of a fire there would not be sufficient room for the fire department to 

operate without towing cars; and 

 

WHEREAS limiting overnight parking on Page Street to residents with permits will significantly reduce 

the number of cars parked on the street at least during the overnight hours; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Town Council hereby enacts the following amendment to the Town of 

Brunswick Municipal Code of Ordinances, Chapter 15, as follows: 

 

 

  Chapter 15 
 

TRAFFIC AND VEHICLES* 
__________  

* Cross References: Animals, Ch. 4; dogs, § 4-26 et seq.; fire prevention and protection, Ch. 7; housing, Ch. 8; vehicles for hire, 

§ 10-96 et seq.; solid waste, Ch. 13; streets, sidewalks and other public places, Ch. 14; zoning and subdivision of land, App. A; traffic 

impact analysis required in certain circumstances, App. A, § 409.3, L; subdivision regulations, App. A, § 501 et seq. 
__________  

 
 Art. I. In General, §§ 15-1--15-25 

 
 Art. II. Traffic-Control Devices, §§ 15-26--15-45 

 
 Art. III. Specific Street Regulations, §§ 15-46--15-70 

 
 Art. IV. Stopping, Standing, Parking, §§ 15-71--15-100 

 
 Art. V. Rules for Operation of Vehicles, §§ 15-101--15-120 

 
 Art. VI. Pedestrians, §§ 15-121--15-140 

 
 Art. VII. Bicycles and Skateboards, §§ 15-141--15-144 

 



. 

  ARTICLE IV. 
 

STOPPING, STANDING, PARKING* 
__________  

* Cross References: Streets, sidewalks and other public places, Ch. 14. 

__________  

 

Sec. 15-71. Rules governing stopping and parking.  
 

The following rules govern the stopping and parking of vehicles: …. 

 

   

 (14) Parking limited to residents with permits.  A person shall not stop or park a vehicle on a street 

upon which parking for a particular purpose or time period is limited to particular residents with 

permits unless an unexpired resident permit issued by the Town of Brunswick is hanging from the 

vehicle’s rear view mirror.  For the purpose of this section, a resident is defined an owner of a 

property on a designated street, as set forth on the assessing records of the Town of Brunswick.  A 

property owner may obtain up to two resident parking permits per tax lot, which permits may be 

displayed in the vehicle of the property owner, a tenant of the property owner, a family member of 

the property owner or tenant, or a guest/invitee of the property owner or tenant.  The permits are 

issued to the property owner and are not vehicle specific.  Each a permit shall cost $25.00 per year 

and the expiration date shall be displayed prominently on the permit. Resident parking permits do 

not entitle to the permit holder to disregard a snow emergency parking ban.  Longfellow Avenue 

rResident parking permits for a particular street shall only be issued to  be limited to Longfellow 

Avenue residents of that street. Report to Town Council: The police department will report to the 

town council on the effectiveness of the permit system by the second meeting of January, 2016. 

 

Sec. 15-73. Overnight parking restricted. 
 

(a) … 

 

 (k)  A person shall not park a vehicle on Page Street, north side, commencing at Maine Street and 

extending westerly to Union Street between the hours of 1:00 a.m. and 6:00 a.m. unless the vehicle displays an 

unexpired Page Street resident parking permit issued in accordance with Sec. 15-71 (14). 

 

… 

 

  Emergency Declaration 

The Town Council declares the existence of an emergency because the Town has no ordinances in place to 

limit long term parking on Page Street and the resulting congestion has created a public safety hazard because at 

times would be difficult for fire engines to get down the street and be utilized to fight fires. Accordingly, this 

ordinance shall take effect immediately. 

 

Effective date:   



 

 

Memorandum 

To: TM Eldridge 

From: Cmdr. Waltz 

Re: Parking Options for Page Street 

Date: January 27, 2015 

 

 The purpose of this memorandum is to outline the options for Page Street.  

1. Overnight Parking by Permit Only.  I have previously provided a draft of this change.  This would 

ensure turnover as the only cars which could park on the street at night are those with permits.  This 

may not necessarily help daytime congestion as the street would be open to anyone during the day. 

 

2. Time Limit.  A time limit would also ensure parking turn over.  If this avenue is pursued, a three 

hour limit (we have this on School Street) might be better than a two hour limit.  The Maine State Music 

Theater is increasingly having a difficulty finding places for patrons to park and a two hour limit would 

effectively rule out Page Street as a parking option for theater attendees. 

 

3. Expanded No Parking Zones. The only no parking zones currently are at the very ends of the 

street.  The signed no parking zones on the north side of the street are not in our current ordinance.  An 

option to make traffic flow easier might be to reduce the inventory of parking in the street by creating 

some “no parking” areas. 

 

4. “Lewiston Solution”.  It was suggested that Lewiston has passed a special ordinance which 

requires the police to chalk cars with Bates parking stickers on city streets and tow any cars not moved 

in 24 hours.  I have contacted Lt. Mike McGonagle and as it turns out, Lewiston does not have a special 

ordinance, they are simply choosing to enforce their abandoned vehicle ordinance in this manner.  

Lewiston’s abandoned vehicle ordinance is as follows: 

Sec. 70-149. Abandonment of a vehicle; removal, expense.  

(a) No person shall abandon any vehicle of any kind on any street of the city. The chief of 

police is hereby authorized to remove and arrange for the storage of any such abandoned 

vehicle from any street. The owner shall be responsible for the expense of towing and 

storage of a vehicle which has been removed pursuant to this provision. 



 Brunswick also has an abandoned vehicle ordinance. Essentially ours (Chapter 15, Sec. 71 (10))1 

designates a vehicle as abandoned if it remains in a timed zone or restricted area for 24 hours or in any 

other area for 72 hours.  We use it rather infrequently.  We towed a car from Union Street a couple of 

years ago which did not move for  a couple of weeks and a certified letter mailed to the registered 

owner did not yield results.  If the requirement of attempting to contact the owner were removed from 

the Brunswick ordinance we could use it in a manner similar to Lewiston, but I would not recommend 

removing the notice requirement.  Towing without notice is a rather severe penalty.  If a car is truly a 

traffic hazard, we can already move it without notice.    

 In sum, we can do whatever the council wishes, though our preference would be Options 1, 2 or 

3 outlined above (or any combination of them).  There are a number of tools which may accomplish the 

same goal and the input of the residents of the street is important.  Some seem to actually want at least 

limited parking as a traffic calming measure.   

                                                           

 
1
 Brunswick Code of Ordiances Ch. 15, Sec 71 (10) 

Abandoned vehicle. 

a. 

For the purposes of this section, a vehicle parked or stopped on any public way, private way or 

public property, in a time restricted parking zone or designated restricted zone as described by 

sections 15-71(5), 15-73, 15-76, 15-77, 15-81 and 15-84 and which the police have determined 

has not been moved within a twenty-four-hour period, may be ordered removed by the police chief 

or his/her designee, and placed in a suitable location at the expense of the owner, after reasonable 

attempts have been made by the police to contact the owner or operator.  

b. 

For the purposes of this section, a vehicle parked or stopped on any public way, private way or 

public property, other than a time restricted parking zone or designated restricted zone as 

described by sections 15-71(5), 15-73, 15-76, 15-77, 15-81 and 15-84 and which the police have 

determined has not been moved within a seventy-two-hour period, may be ordered removed by the 

police chief or his/her designee, and placed in a suitable location at the expense of the owner, 

after reasonable attempts have been made by the police to contact the owner or operator. 

 



Parking Restriction for residential streets near Page Street 
 
Street Parking Restrictions 
Belmont Street No restrictions 
Boody Street No parking - Both sides, commencing at Maine Street and extending 

westerly four hundred ten (410) feet Monday a.m. through Friday p.m. 
except holidays.  

Coffin Street No parking - Both sides.  

College Street No parking - Both sides.  

Columbia Avenue No restrictions 
Longfellow No parking – (1) South side, commencing at Maine Street and extending 

easterly three hundred (300) feet; and 
(2) North side, commencing at Maine Street and extending easterly one 
hundred seventy-two (172) feet. 
 
Overnight parking restriction - A person shall not park a vehicle on 
Longfellow Avenue, both sides, commencing at Harpswell Road and 
extending westerly to Maine Street between the hours of 1:00 a.m. and 
6:00 a.m. – except for those with resident permits 

McKeen Street No parking area – (1) North side, commencing at Maine Street and 
extending westerly to a point opposite 21 McKeen Street;  

(2) North side, commencing at Spring Street and extending westerly five 
hundred fifty (550) feet; 

(3) North side, commencing at Spring Street and extending westerly to 
Stanwood Street;   

(4) South side, commencing at Spring Street and extending westerly to 63 
McKeen Street; and  

(5) South side, commencing at Maine Street and extending westerly five 
hundred twenty-two (522) feet.  

McLellan Street No restrictions 

Noble Street No parking - (1) North side, commencing at Maine Street and extending 
westerly fifty (50) feet; 

(2) North side, commencing at the west side of the curb cut for the 
driveway to the Inn at Maine Street Station and extending in a westerly 
direction twenty-eight (28) feet;  and 

(3) South side.  

One way street 

  



Page Street No Parking Area – (1) North side commencing at Maine Street and 
extending westerly thirty-six (36) feet; 

(2) North side, commencing at Spring Street, and extending easterly forty 
(40) feet; 

(3) South side, commencing at Maine Street and extending westerly to 
Union Street; and 

(4) South side commencing at Union Street, westerly to Spring Street, 8:00 
a.m. to 4:00 p.m., Monday through Friday.  

Park Row Overnight parking restriction - A person shall not park a vehicle on Park 
Row, east side, commencing at Longfellow  and extending northerly to 
Bath Road between the hours of 1:00 a.m. and 6:00 a.m. 
 
2 - Hour Limit – (1)   East side, commencing at a point one hundred thirty-
five (135) feet north of South Street and continuing north to College Street. 
;  and 

(2) East side, commencing at the driveway/footpath on the south side of the 
Walker Art Museum and continuing north to the driveway/footpath on the 
north side of the Walker Art Museum 

Pine Street No parking - South side, commencing at Bath Road and extending easterly 
to Bowker Street, except parking is permitted adjacent to Whittier Field 
between April fifteenth and November fifteenth if the entire vehicle is 
parked off of the pavement. 

Potter Street No parking – (1) South side; 
(2) North side, commencing at Maine Street and extending westerly one 
hundred eighty (180) feet; and 
(3) North side commencing at Union Street and extending easterly thirty-
six (36) feet. 
 
Overnight parking restriction - A person shall not park a vehicle on Potter 
Street, south side, commencing at Maine Street and extending westerly to 
Union Street between the hours of 1:00 a.m. and 6:00 a.m. 

Sills Drive No parking - Easterly side, commencing at Bath Road and extending 
southerly to College Street. 

South Street No parking – (1) South side; 

(2) North side from Maine Street extending easterly two hundred twenty-
four (224) feet 

Overnight parking restriction -A person shall not park a vehicle on South 
Street, north side, commencing at Coffin Street and extending westerly to 
Maine Street between the hours of 1:00 a.m. and 6:00 a.m.  

  



Union Street No parking – (1) Eeast side, commencing at McKeen Street and extending 
northerly to Noble Street; 

(2) West side, commencing at McKeen Street and extending northerly to 
Weymouth Street;  

(3) East side, commencing at Station Avenue and extending northerly one 
hundred twenty-five (125) feet; and 

(4) East side, commencing at Station Avenue and extending to Noble 
Street.  

Weymouth Street No restrictions 
Maine Street Overnight parking restriction - A person shall not park a vehicle on Maine 

Street, west side, commencing at Noble Street and extending southerly to 
Boody Street between the hours of 1:00 a.m. and 6:00 a.m 

 



Page Street – Dwelling Units 
 

 



 
Intentionally left blank 



 
 

 
ITEM 11 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 





  FINAL 01/28/2015 
 

 
 

  Chapter 11 
 

MARINE ACTIVITIES, STRUCTURES AND WAYS* 
__________  
 

*Cross References: Conservation Commission, § 2-76 et seq.; Buildings and Building Regulations, Ch. 5; 
Fire Prevention and Protection, Ch. 7; Housing, Ch. 8; Solid Waste, Ch. 13; Streets, Sidewalks and Other 
Public Places, Ch. 14; Discharge of Sewerage Into Surface Waters Prohibited, § 16-26; Zoning and 
Subdivision of Land, App. A; Marine Construction, App. A, § 407. 

 
State Law References: Harbor Masters, 38 M.R.S.A. § 1 et seq., Disposal of Unclaimed, Lost or Stolen 
Personal Property by Law Enforcement Agencies, 25 M.R.S.A. § 3501 et seq., Law Enforcement Training 
for Harbor Masters 25 M.R.S.A. §  2804-I.  

__________  
 

 Art.    I. Harbor, Coastal, Tidal and Navigable Fresh Waters, §§ 11-1--11-25 
 

 Art.    II. Reserved, §§ 11-26--11-70 
 

 Art. III. Shellfishing, §§ 11-71--11-165 
 

 Div. 1. Generally, §§ 11-71--11-95 
 

 Div. 2.  Marine Resource Committee, §§ 11-96--11-110 
 

 Div. 3. Shellfish Regional Advisory Commission, §§ 11-111--11-130 
 

 Div. 4. License, §§ 11-131--11-160 
 

 Div. 5. Regulations, §§ 11-161--11-165 
 

  ARTICLE I. 
 

HARBOR, COASTAL, TIDAL AND NAVIGABLE FRESH WATERS 
 

Sec. 11-0      General. 
 

(A)  Purpose.  To establish the boundaries of channels in harbors and to regulate other 
activities in the harbors, coastal, tidal, and navigable waters within the Town of 
Brunswick, Maine in order to ensure safety to persons and property, to promote 
availability, preservation, and use of a valuable public resource, and to create a 
fair and efficient framework for administration of the resource. 

 
(B) Authority.  This article is adopted pursuant to the authority granted by 38 

M.R.S.A §§ 1-13, 30-A M.R.S.A § 3001, and the Constitution of Maine, Article 
VIII, Part 2. 

 
(C) Severability.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or other portion of this 

1 
7905394.2 



  FINAL 01/28/2015 
 

Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of 
competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed to be a separate, distinct, and 
independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the 
remaining portions. 

 
(Ord. of ______) 
 
Sec. 11-1      Definitions. 
 

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this Article, shall have the 
meanings ascribed to them as set forth in this Section, except where the context clearly 
indicates a different meaning:  
 

Anchorage. All navigable waters defined within the municipal boundaries of the 
Town of Brunswick. 
 
Association. An organization of residential property owners, whether in the form 
of a homeowner association, subdivision association, condominium association, 
road association, unit  owner association, planned unit development, residential 
real estate management association, or similar ownership arrangement or 
structure, where the organization assists with maintaining and improving 
Association property or property that is commonly held by its members. 

Boat Yard. A place adjacent to coastal waters, where, as a business or gainful 
occupation, watercraft are hauled, stored, repaired and/or constructed.  
 
Channels. Those paths designated by this Chapter for navigation in or access to 
the harbor, coastal, tidal and navigable fresh waters of Brunswick.   
 
Commercial mooring.  A mooring used with profit as a primary aim.  Commercial 
moorings require Army Corps of Engineers approval.  
 
Commercial use. A use with profit as a primary aim.  
 
Haul Off Mooring. A mooring or tether system for a dinghy or watercraft which 
allows the dinghy or watercraft to be hauled to and from a mooring block or 
anchor to the shore by a system of lines secured at the shore.  
 
Houseboat. A raft, hull, barge or vessel, designed primarily to be used as a 
commercial establishment or living quarters, rather than for navigation.  
 
Marina. An all-tide waterfront facility, whose activities may include sales, 
storage, and maintenance of watercraft, and which provides slips or moorings for 
permanent, rental or transient berthing, and sells fuel, and supplies for watercraft 
and provides vehicle parking. 
 
Mooring. A means of securing a single watercraft to a particular location, other 

2 
7905394.2 



  FINAL 01/28/2015 
 

than a pier or dock; an underwater device, either helix, granite block, or 
mushroom, which tethers watercraft. A temporary mooring is one which is 
constructed to be hauled out of the water seasonally.  A permanent mooring is one 
which is constructed to winter over in the water.  A flats mooring is one which is 
located on the mud flats at low tide. 
 
Multi-use Mooring. A registered, non-commercial mooring that hosts more than 
one watercraft over the course of a season for personal use only.  Personal use 
includes, but is not limited to, use by a visiting family member.  Multi-use 
moorings cannot be rented or leased and owners of multi-use moorings must 
inform the Harbor Master regarding what watercraft will use the mooring each 
season.  No more than one watercraft may be moored at a time. 

 
Non-resident. All persons not residents of the Town of Brunswick are classified 
as non-residents. 

 
Private mooring.  Any mooring that is not a commercial mooring or rental 
mooring. 
 
Rental mooring.  Rental moorings are considered commercial moorings and 
require Army Corps of Engineers approval. 
 
Resident. A person who occupies a dwelling for more than six (6) months in a 
calendar year within the Town of Brunswick, a Brunswick real estate tax payer, or 
a registered voter in the Town of Brunswick.  
 
Town Wharfs. Any floats or structures located at town owned or operated boat 
launches.  
 
Watercraft. Any type of vessel, boat, barge, float, or craft used on the water. 
 
Yacht Club. A private association, corporation or other legal entity organized to 
promote recreational boating. 
 

(Ord. of 4-4-05; Ord. of ______) 
 
Sec. 11-2      Channels. 
 

(A)  Establishment of channels. Two (2) channels are established, described as 
follows: 

 
(1) Commencing at the Old Bath Road bridge as it crosses the New Meadows 

River, thence following the high water mark of the New Meadows River 
southerly to the southerly tip of Howard Point, thence easterly to the town line 
between Brunswick and West Bath, thence following the town line northerly 
to the Bath Road bridge, thence westerly along the Bath Road bridge to the 

3 
7905394.2 



  FINAL 01/28/2015 
 

point of beginning. 
 

(2) Commencing at the mean high water line on the Mere Point Boat Launch 
ramp surface and extending approximately three hundred fifty (350) feet to 
the southeast between buoys marking the fifty (50) foot wide approach lane to 
the ramp. 

 
(B)  Passage of vessels. A person shall not use any watercraft or any other device or 

structure within the described channels so as to interfere with or impede the 
passage of vessels in the channel in any manner. 

 
(C)  Mooring. A person shall not place, anchor, or moor any watercraft within the 

described channels without the permission of the Harbor Master.  
 

(Ord. of 4-4-05; Ord. of ______) 
 
Sec. 11-3      Harbor Master. 
 

(A)  Appointment. The town shall appoint a Harbor Master every three years (or upon 
vacancy) on May 1st for a period of three years.  Pursuant to 38 M.R.S.A. § 1-A, a 
person appointed or reappointed as Harbor Master must complete a basic harbor 
master training course offered by a statewide harbor masters association within 
one year after being appointed or reappointed, unless that person has previously 
completed such a course.  

 
 (B)  Duties. The Harbor Master shall have the following responsibilities and duties: 
 

(1) To the extent of jurisdiction, enforce any and all federal, state and local laws, 
ordinances, codes, rules or regulations relating to the management and control 
of the Town of Brunswick's harbor, coastal, tidal and navigable fresh waters, 
shores, coastline, boat launch facilities, and wharfs; 
 

(2) Provide information or seek input as appropriate from any source, including 
the Rivers and Coastal Waters Commission, the Marine Resources 
Committee, Marine Wardens, Town Manager, Town Council, or Town 
Attorney; 
 

(3) Approve and control the placement of all moorings within the harbor, coastal, 
tidal, and navigable fresh waters of the Town of Brunswick pursuant to the 
provisions of this Ordinance.  

 
(4) Maintain accurate records of all registered moorings; and 

 
(5) Serve as staff to the Rivers and Coastal Waters Commission (the 

“Commission”), regularly attend Commission meetings, inform the 
Commission of his/her activities and provide such information as may be 

4 
7905394.2 



  FINAL 01/28/2015 
 

requested by the Commission for the execution of its duties.  The Harbor 
Master shall also report to the Town Council regarding his/her activities and 
the activities of the Commission. 
 

 (C)  Authority to carry a weapon and make arrests. Pursuant to 38 M.R.S.A. § 1, a 
Harbor Master may not make arrests or carry a firearm unless the Harbor Master 
has successfully completed the training requirements prescribed in Title 25, 
Section 2804-I of the Maine Revised Statutes.  A harbor master who has 
completed this training shall be assigned to a division under the Police 
Department.  

 
 (Ord. of 4-4-05; Ord. of 4-7-08(1); Ord. of ______) 
 
Sec. 11-4      Moorings. 
 

(A)  Mooring Assignments. Mooring privileges in the Town of Brunswick shall be 
assigned pursuant to 38 M.R.S.A. §§ 3 and 11. Consequently, mooring 
assignments are available to individuals who are the owners or masters of a 
watercraft and who own shore rights to a parcel of land, which is defined as a lot 
that satisfies applicable minimal buildable lot size requirements and includes at 
least 100 feet of shoreline frontage.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, mooring 
assignments are also available to individuals who, prior to January 1, 1987, 
owned shore rights of at least 100 feet of frontage regardless of the size of the lot. 
Only one mooring may be assigned to any shorefront parcel of land under this 
privilege. 

 
(B)  Grandfathered moorings. Notwithstanding Section 11-4(A), mooring privileges in 

lawful existence on the effective date of this Ordinance shall be preserved.  
Nothing in this subsection shall be construed as a limitation on the authority of the 
Harbor Master with respect to use and location of the moorings.   

 
(C) Transferability of Mooring Assignments. Pursuant to 38 M.R.S.A. §§ 3 and 3-A, 

mooring assignments may not be transferred unless the mooring is used for 
commercial fishing purposes.  Transfer of a mooring assignment used for 
commercial fishing purposes is permitted only at the request or death of the 
mooring owner, only to a member of the mooring owner’s family, and only if the 
mooring assignment will continue to be used for commercial fishing purposes.  A 
member of the mooring owner’s family means a parent, child, or sibling, by birth 
or adoption, including a relation of the half blood, or the mooring owner’s spouse.   

 
(D) Registration. Owners of parcels that qualify under Section 11-4(A) who desire a 

mooring assignment and owners of grandfathered mooring assignments must 
submit a mooring registration form to the Harbor Master each year.   

 
In the year 2015, the Harbor Master shall no later than two weeks after enactment 
of this Ordinance by the Town Council send via U.S. Mail or email a notice to all 

5 
7905394.2 



  FINAL 01/28/2015 
 

registered mooring owners informing them of the June 1st deadline for submission 
of the annual mooring registration form.  Each year thereafter, the Harbor Master 
shall no later than January 31st send via U.S. Mail or email a notice to all 
registered mooring owners informing them of the May 1st deadline for submission 
of the annual registration form.  Notice of the registration deadline shall also be 
posted in the Town Hall and on the Town of Brunswick’s website no later than 
January 31st.   
 
Mooring registration forms may be downloaded from the Town of Brunswick’s 
website or obtained from the Town Clerk or the Harbor Master.   

 
Registration forms shall require the following information: 

 
(1) Description of the watercraft to be moored, including state and/or federal 

registration numbers, make and model, color, length, propulsion, draft, and 
weight; 

 
(2) The applicant’s name (or names, in the event the mooring is to be held jointly 

by adult members of the same household), residence address or local business 
address, mailing address (designated by the applicant as the address where the 
applicant will accept notices under this Ordinance), home or cell phone 
number, and email address;   

 
(3) Type and weight of mooring; 

 
(4) Type and size of bottom and top chains;  

 
(5) A name, address, and telephone number of an emergency contact, whom the 

mooring owner authorizes to make decisions surrounding the mooring in his 
or her absence;  

  
(6) GPS location (or proposed location) of the mooring; 

 
(7) The signature of the applicant, or the applicant’s designee, and the date of the 

application; and 
 

(8) Dates of installation and of the most recent inspection. 
 
 (E) Fees. The Rivers and Coastal Waters Commission will recommend mooring 

registration fees to be adopted by the Brunswick Town Council.  Mooring 
registration fees may be amended from time to time. Mooring registration fee 
schedules will be available at the Town Clerk’s Office and on the Town of 
Brunswick’s website. 

 
(F) Mooring Inspection Required. Every two years, each registered mooring shall be 

inspected by the mooring owner at the mooring owner’s expense and must be 

6 
7905394.2 



  FINAL 01/28/2015 
 

determined by the mooring owner to be in a safe condition.  The date of 
inspection must be recorded on the mooring registration form.  The mooring 
owner is responsible for the adequacy and performance of all mooring gear, 
tackle, and maintenance thereof.  The Harbor Master has the authority to inspect 
at any time any mooring and to require any necessary maintenance or replacement 
of parts or the whole mooring, tackle and/or gear, for which the mooring owner 
shall be responsible for all costs incurred. 

 
The Town of Brunswick assumes no liability whatsoever for the actual 
performance or adequacy of any mooring system employed by a mooring owner. 

 
(G)  Placement standards. The Harbor Master shall approve the location of all 

moorings in the harbor, coastal, and tidal waters of Brunswick.  All moorings 
shall meet the following standards: 

 
(1) Moorings shall be adequate for the size, weight, and windage of the 

watercraft. 
 

(2) Moorings shall be located in areas that do not interfere with navigation. 
 

(3) Moorings shall not encroach into the channels of Brunswick. 
 

(4) Moorings shall be located in areas that do not cause unreasonable adverse 
impacts on natural resources.  Conditions that may result in an unreasonable 
adverse impact on natural resources include, but are not limited to: 

 
i. The presence of eel grass or other submerged vegetation; 

 
ii.  The presence of a significant shellfish habitat, or important recreational or 

commercial fishing ground; 
 

iii. The proposed location is within mapped Significant Shorebird Feeding or 
Roosting Habitat (based on Maine Department of Inland Fisheries and 
Wildlife and Maine Department of Environmental Protection Maps); 

 
iv. The proposed location is within mapped Tidal Waterfowl and Wadingbird 

Habitat (based on Maine Department of Inland Fisheries and Wildlife and 
Maine Department of Environmental Protection Maps); 

 
v. The proposed location is within habitat for listed rare, threatened, or 

endangered species, and regular use of a mooring in that location would 
unreasonably adversely impact the species; or 

 
vi. The proposed location would cause unreasonable adverse impacts to a 

saltmarsh. 
 

7 
7905394.2 



  FINAL 01/28/2015 
 

Nothing in this Subsection shall be construed to limit the authority of the 
Harbor Master to consider other factors and make determinations on 
unreasonable adverse impacts to natural resources on a case-by-case basis.  
Where practicable, the Harbor Master shall work with the mooring owner to 
evaluate and select placement and tackle alternatives in order to mitigate 
unreasonable adverse impacts on natural resources.  
 

(5)  The Harbor Master’s authority under this Section shall not be inconsistent 
with Army Corps of Engineers and Maine Department of Environmental 
Protection approvals governing existing commercial moorings in mooring 
fields.   
 

(6) Where practicable, the Harbor Master shall, if so requested, locate the 
mooring within reasonable proximity of the mooring owner’s property. 

 
All moorings that meet the above standards but are not placed in the location 
approved by the Harbor Master shall be moved by the owner at his or her own 
expense in accordance with the instructions of the Harbor Master.  In the event of 
a mooring owner’s failure to comply with the relocation and/or removal 
instructions of the Harbor Master, the Harbor Master shall move or remove the 
improperly located mooring and the cost shall be borne by the owner of the 
mooring.  Before removing a mooring, the Harbor Master shall notify the owner, 
if ownership can be determined, by mail at the owner’s last known address, or by 
email.  The notice shall inform the owner of the desired action and of the fact that 
the mooring will be removed at the expense of the owner if the owner does not 
comply.  If the matter is not settled to the Harbor Master’s satisfaction within two 
(2) weeks after notice was given, the Harbor Master may then move or remove 
the mooring. 

 
(H) Identifying Numbers. Identifying numbers shall be issued to mooring owners, and 

mooring balls and buoys must be clearly marked with the issued number.  
Numbers shall be a minimum of four (4) inches and visible at all times.  
Replacement mooring balls and buoys shall maintain the originally assigned 
number.  An annual mooring registration sticker, issued by the Harbor Master 
upon completion and approval of the mooring registration, shall be affixed to the 
top of the mooring buoy for which it was assigned.   

 
(I)  Ownership of Moorings. All mooring assignments (with the exception of marina 

moorings) shall be used exclusively for the use of the mooring owner and solely 
for the watercraft (or in the case of a multi-use mooring, multiple watercraft) 
listed in the application. 

 
(J) Termination. All persons who had been assigned a mooring and whose mooring 

assignment is to be terminated by the Harbor Master for reasons of non-
compliance with this article or any other reason shall receive written notification 
from the Harbor Master.  This notice shall state the fact of the termination and the 

8 
7905394.2 



  FINAL 01/28/2015 
 

reason for termination, and list the appeal procedures designated in Section 11-14 
of this Chapter. 

 
(K) Associations. Associations may establish and manage moorings plans on behalf of 

Association members, subject to input and approval by the Harbor Master. 
Mooring areas controlled by Associations shall be subject to the following 
requirements: 

 
(1) The Association manages moorings in designated areas; 

(2) The Association provides oversight of member mooring use, including 
inspections; and 

(3) The Association is registered with the Harbor Master and provides 
member/mooring holder rosters and mooring location plans. 

 Nothing in this Subsection shall be construed as a limitation on the ability of the 
Harbor Master to carry out his responsibilities and duties as set forth in this 
Chapter. 

 
(Ord. of 4-4-05; Ord. of ______) 
 
Sec. 11-5      Operation of watercraft.  
 

No watercraft shall be operated within two-hundred (200) feet of shore and within 
established mooring fields or moorings placed in a designated area in accordance with 
Section 11-4 (K) of this Chapter at a speed in excess of five knots or that causes a wash, 
wake or waves that disturbs or damages any wharf,  float or anchored or moored dock, or 
watercraft or that endangers any person or property.  
 

(Ord. of 4-4-05; Ord. of ______) 
 
Sec. 11-6      Town launch facilities. 
 

(A)  Use of town launch facilities consistent with the provisions of this article shall be 
permitted. 
 
(1) Commercial uses of town launch facilities require a special activity permit 

from the Town Clerk. 
 

 (B)  The following activities are prohibited at town launch facilities: 
 
   (1) Storage of bait or catch for unreasonable periods of time, as determined by 

the Harbor Master. 
   
   (2) Processing of seafood products.  For the purposes of this Section, 

"processing" does not include washing clams by repeated submersion of 

9 
7905394.2 



  FINAL 01/28/2015 
 

bushel bags in the water. 
 
   (3) Anchoring or mooring. 
 
   (4) Tying up to wharfs for more than thirty (30) minutes.  
 
   (5) Swimming or fishing except in designated areas.  
 
  (6)  Power loading or unloading, watercraft washing, watercraft painting, and 

bilge draining.   
 

(Ord. of 4-4-05; Ord. of 4-7-08(2); Ord. of ________) 
 
Sec. 11-7      Disruptive conduct.  
 

No person shall disrupt safe and lawful activities, or in any way threaten the public 
safety, in or around town launch facilities, wharfs, and harbors, coastal, tidal and 
navigable waters of the Town of Brunswick.  
 

(Ord. of 4-4-05; Ord. of ______) 
 
Sec. 11-8      Menaces to navigation.  
 

The Harbor Master is authorized to take whatever action is necessary and appropriate to 
remove any menace to navigation within the harbor, coastal, tidal and navigable fresh 
waters of the Town of Brunswick.  This shall include, but is not limited to, contracting 
for removal of the menace by the authorities of the State of Maine, Federal Government, 
or a private contractor at the expense of either the Town of Brunswick, some other 
governmental entity, or the private entity or individual responsible  for the  creation of the 
menace.  
 

(Ord. of 4-4-05; Ord. of ______) 
 
Sec. 11-9      Dumping of sewage prohibited.  
 

No person may discharge, spill or permit to be discharged sewage, garbage, or other 
pollutants from any watercraft into the harbor, coastal, tidal and navigable fresh waters of 
the Town of Brunswick or onto the ice or banks thereof in such a manner that the same 
may fall or be washed into such waters or in such a manner that the drainage may flow 
into such waters.  
 

(Ord. of 4-4-05) 
 
Sec. 11-10      Failure to obey order of the Harbor Master.  
 

As provided by 38 M.R.S.A.§ 13, a person is guilty of failure to obey an order of the 

10 
7905394.2 



  FINAL 01/28/2015 
 

Harbor Master if the person intentionally, knowingly or recklessly fails to obey any 
lawful order of the Harbor Master authorized pursuant to 38 M.R.S.A. §1 et seq.  Failure 
to obey an order of the Harbor Master is a Class E Crime.  
 

(Ord. of 4-4-05) 
 
Sec. 11-11      Forfeiture.  
 

Any watercraft, skiff, float, dock, fishing gear, or wharf left tied to a town wharf without 
proper  identification, or left sunk or awash, for a period exceeding forty-eight (48) hours 
shall be deemed abandoned for the purposes of this Section.  Any abandoned property 
shall be impounded by the Harbor Master and disposed of according to the procedure 
outlined in Title 25, Chapter 401.  The Town shall not be liable for any damage to 
abandoned property that is impounded in accordance with this Section.   
 

(Ord. of 4-4-05; Ord. of ______) 
 
Sec. 11-12      Enforcement.  
 

This Chapter shall be enforced pursuant to the provisions of 38 M.R.S.A § 1 et seq. and 
30-A M.R.S.A. § 4452.  Any person found in violation of this article shall, after notice 
and hearing, lose his or her mooring privileges and all rights to use the town launch 
facilities and wharfs.  In addition, the town shall have available all other remedies 
provided by law.  
 

(Ord. of 4-4-05; Ord. of ______) 
 
Sec. 11-13      Boat storage. 
 

No boat, vessel, raft, barge, or other watercraft shall be stored overnight in or on any 
navigable waters within the town without being licensed or permitted to do so.  A person 
found in violation will be subjected to the cost of removing the vessel, boat, raft, barge, 
or watercraft and be fined one hundred and fifty dollars ($150.00). 
 

(Ord. of 06-20-11(1)) 
  
Sec. 11-14      Appeals. 
 

(A) Any person directly aggrieved by a decision, order, rule, or action by the Harbor 
Master may appeal said decision, order, rule or action to the Rivers and Coastal 
Waters Commission. 

 
(B) Such appeal shall be made in writing within 30 calendar days of the decision, 

order, rule, or act from which the appeal is taken. It must state with specificity the 
decision, order, rule, or act from which the appeal is taken and the reason for the 
appeal.  The Commission at its next regular meeting, or pursuant to a specially 

11 
7905394.2 



  FINAL 01/28/2015 
 

called meeting, shall consider the appeal.  The decision on appeal by the 
Commission shall be written and state the reasons and basis for the decision. 

 
(C) Any decision, order, rule, or act by the Harbor Master concerning the location of 

moorings, as a result of which location there is an immediate danger to life or 
property, shall not be stayed pending the appeal. 

 
(D) Any party directly aggrieved by the decision of the Commission may appeal 

within thirty (30) days to the superior court in accordance with the Maine Rules of 
Civil Procedure. 

 
(Ord. of ________) 
 
Sec. 11-15      Rivers and Coastal Waters Commission. 
 

(A) Purpose. The Rivers and Coastal Waters Commission works toward harbor 
improvement and management, consistent with the objectives and priorities of the 
Town’s Harbor Management Plan (“HMP”).  The Commission will bring 
recommendations for policy, oversight and/or action(s) to the Town Council, as 
appropriate.  The Town Council will have ultimate authority over adopting the 
Commission’s recommendations. 
 

(B) Administrative Matters. The Commission will meet bimonthly, quarterly, or other 
frequency as determined by the Commissioners and Staff.  The Commission will 
elect its slate of officers, at an interval deemed most appropriate to its 
membership. 

 
(C) Appeals. The Rivers and Coastal Waters Commission also sits as a board of 

appeals to hear appeals from any person aggrieved by any order, rule, or action by 
the Harbor Master as set forth in Section 11-14 of this Chapter.   

 
(D) Staffing and Membership. The primary staff to the Commission shall be the 

Harbor Master. The Commission will be composed of seven (7) Voting Members; 
Two (2) Ex-Officio Non-Voting Members; Two (2) Alternates; and One (1) Non-
Voting Primary Staff Member, as described in the Town Council charge adopted 
April 28, 2014, as amended from time to time.  

 
(Ord. of ________) 
 
11-16--11-25      Reserved. 

12 
7905394.2 



 
 

 
ITEM 12 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



MEMORANDUM	
	
	
TO:	 Town	Council	
	
FROM:	 John	Eldridge	
	 Town	Manager	
	
DATE:	 January	27,	2015	
	
RE:	 Personnel	Policy	
	 Vacation	Policy	Amendments	
	
	
Attached	is	a	proposed	amendment	to	the	Personnel	Policy	to	require	that	exceeding	the	maximum	
allowable	accrued	balance	can	only	be	accomplished	with	a	written	request	and	written	approval.		
Under	the	proposed	amendment,	the	authorization	to	exceed	the	maximum	shall	expire	the	following	
year	unless	another	exception	is	requested	and	approved	in	writing.		The	amendment	also	makes	it	
clear	that	compliance	with	the	policy	will	be	measured	each	June	30th.		The	measurement	date	is	
consistent	with	the	Town’s	past	practice.	
	
The	proposed	amendment	also	makes	it	clear	that	an	employee	who	works	his	or	her	vacation	cannot	
receive	both	vacation	pay	and	regular	pay	for	the	same	time	unless	an	exception	is	approved	in	
writing.		An	exception	may	be	warranted,	for	example,	if	an	employee,	having	received	approval	for	a	
vacation,	is	subsequently	called	back	or	asked	to	work.			
	
Finally,	the	proposed	amendment	makes	it	clear	that,	once	a	vacation	commences,	an	employee	
cannot	substitute	another	form	of	leave	time	for	the	vacation	time.	
	
As	the	Personnel	Policy	is	actually	an	ordinance,	the	proposed	amendments	will	require	a	public	
hearing	prior	to	adoption.		I	recommend	that	Town	Council	set	a	public	hearing	for	February	23rd.	
	
	
Attachments	
	
	
	



Sec. 12-81. - Vacation.  
 

(a)  Regular full-time employees. Each regular full-time employee shall be awarded annual vacation 
time with pay. Requests for leave must be approved by the employee's supervisor who shall take 
into consideration adequate staffing requirements. In accordance with the employee's current term 
of continuous employment based upon the standard work weeks depicted below, vacation shall be 
awarded as follows:  
 

Avg. hours worked per week 20 35 37.5 40

For years 1—5, accrue at this rate: 
(2 wks/yr) 

Wkly. Accum. (in hours) .769 1.346 1.442 1.538

For years 6—13 accrue at this rate: 
(3 wks/yr) 

Wkly. Accum. (in hours) 1.154 2.019 2.163 2.308

For years 14—19 accrue at this rate: 
(4 wks/yr) 

Wkly. Accum. (in hours) 1.538 2.692 2.885 3.077

For years 20+, accrue at this rate: 
(5 wks/yr) 

Wkly. Accum. (in hours) 1.923 3.365 3.606 3.846

 
(1)  If a holiday falls within the employee's vacation period, the employee will not be charged 

vacation for such holiday.   
 

(2) Employees will be eligible to use any accrued vacation time as earned, subject to the approval of 
the supervisor or department head.  Once an employee’s approved vacation time has commenced, 
no other paid leave time may be substituted for the approved vacation time. 

 
(3) No employee shall be entitled to receive both their normal pay and vacation pay for the same 

days actually worked unless authorized in writing by the town manager. 
 

(4) Employees, regardless of length of service, may carry a balance of up to thirty (30) days of 
vacation leave, measured annually each June 30.  Any balance in excess of thirty (30) days shall 
be forfeited unless the town manager authorizes an exception to this requirement.  Any exception 
shall be in writing and shall expire at the next measurement date, unless again extended in writing 
by the town manager. 

 



(5) The entire system will be based on the employee's anniversary date rather than calendar year. On 
the anniversary date in which the employee progresses to a new, higher rate (on anniversary year 
numbers 6, 14, and 20) he/she will begin accruing vacation at the new, higher rate, which may be 
used as accrued.  

 
(6) Accrued vacation leave shall be paid to an employee upon separation from service, or to his/her 

beneficiary or estate upon death. 
 

(7) Computation will be made by decimals, rounded to three (3) points, i.e., 1.346 hours to 5.833 
hours, and shall be calculated as of the last day of each pay week. 
 

(8) The town manager may exceptions as provided in sections (3) and (4) above when the manager 
determines it is in the best interest of the town.  

 



o:\word\ordinances\code supplement 27 starting june 2014\chapter 12 vacation policy 2-2015.docx 

Proposed Ordinance Amendments 

to Personnel Policy Regarding Vacation Time 

 

Drafted – 01/29/2015 

Public Hearing – 

Adopted –  

Effective –  

 

 Be it ordained by the Town Council of the Town of Brunswick, Maine, that Chapter 12, 

Articles VIII, the Municipal Code of Ordinances, Town of Brunswick, Maine, is amended by 

adding the underlined language and removing the strike-out language as follows: 
 

Sec. 12-81. - Vacation.  

 

(a)  Regular full-time employees. Each regular full-time employee shall be awarded annual vacation 

time with pay. Requests for leave must be approved by the employee's supervisor who shall take 

into consideration adequate staffing requirements. In accordance with the employee's current term 

of continuous employment based upon the standard work weeks depicted below, vacation shall be 

awarded as follows:  

 

Avg. hours worked per week 20 35 37.5 40 

For years 1—5, accrue at this rate: 

(2 wks/yr) 

    

Wkly. Accum. (in hours) .769 1.346 1.442 1.538 

For years 6—13 accrue at this rate: 

(3 wks/yr) 

    

Wkly. Accum. (in hours) 1.154 2.019 2.163 2.308 

For years 14—19 accrue at this rate: 

(4 wks/yr) 

    

Wkly. Accum. (in hours) 1.538 2.692 2.885 3.077 

For years 20+, accrue at this rate: 

(5 wks/yr) 

    

Wkly. Accum. (in hours) 1.923 3.365 3.606 3.846 

 

(1)  If a holiday falls within the employee's vacation period, the employee will not be charged 

vacation for such holiday.   

 

(2) Employees will be eligible to use any accrued vacation time as earned, subject to the approval of 

the supervisor or department head.  Once an employee’s approved vacation time has commenced, 

no other paid leave time may be substituted for the approved vacation time. 

 



o:\word\ordinances\code supplement 27 starting june 2014\chapter 12 vacation policy 2-2015.docx 

(3) No employee shall be entitled to work their vacation with pay, except in case of emergency 

conditions.  receive both their normal pay and vacation pay for the same days actually worked 

unless authorized in writing by the town manager. 

 

(4) Employees, regardless of length of service, may accrue  carry a balance of up to thirty (30) days 

of vacation leave, measured annually each June 30. If an employee accumulates more than thirty 

(30) days vacation, he/she will lose all the time in excess of thirty (30) days  Any balance in 

excess of thirty (30) days shall be forfeited unless.  Due to unusual circumstances, the  the town 

manager may authorizes an exception to this requirement.  Any exception shall be in writing and 

shall expire at the next measurement date, unless again extended in writing by the town manager. 

 

(5) The entire system will be based on the employee's anniversary date rather than calendar year. On 

the anniversary date in which the employee progresses to a new, higher rate (on anniversary year 

numbers 6, 14, and 20) he/she will begin accruing vacation at the new, higher rate, which may be 

used as accrued.  

 

(6) Accrued vacation leave shall be paid to an employee upon separation from service, or to his/her 

beneficiary or estate upon death. 

 

(7) Computation will be made by decimals, rounded to three (3) points, i.e., 1.346 hours to 5.833 

hours, and shall be calculated as of the last day of each pay period. 

 

(8) The town manager may make exceptions as set forth in sections (3) and (4) above only when the 

town manager determines it is in the best interest of the Town. 

 

 

 

Adopted by the Brunswick Town Council at their Regular Meeting held on _____.  It will 

become effective thirty days after adoption.  

 

Attest: ________________________  

  Town Clerk 
 



 
 

 
ITEM 13 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



 

Town of Brunswick, Maine 
INCORPORATED 1739 

OFFICE OF THE TOWN MANAGER 
85 UNION STREET 

BRUNSWICK, MAINE 04011-2418 

 
 

TELEPHONE      207-725-6659 

FAX                      207-725-6663 

 

www.brunswickme.org 

 

	
	

TO: Town Council 
 
FROM: John S. Eldridge 
 Town Manager 
 
DATE: January 28, 2015 
 
RE: Settlement and re-commitment of taxes 
 
 
With the appointment of Julie Henze to the position of Finance Director, she will also assume the titles 
and associated responsibilities of Treasurer and Tax Collector of the Town.  State law establishes the 
duties and liabilities of the Tax Collector, and has specific requirements for the transition to a new Tax 
Collector.  These involve a formal settlement of the list of taxes due with the outgoing Tax Collector, and 
re-commitment of the same list of taxes due with the incoming Tax Collector. 
 
The purpose of this resolution is to authorize the Council Chair to take the necessary actions for the 
transition of the Tax Collector position from myself to Julie Henze. 



 

TOWN OF BRUNSWICK, MAINE 
 

Resolution to Authorize the Town Council Chair to Take Actions Necessary to Complete the 
Settlement and Recommitment of the Balance Due on the Outstanding Tax Lists. 

 
 
WHEREAS, the Town of Brunswick (“Town”) Finance Director serves as the Town’s Tax Collector; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, in October, 2014 John Eldridge, previously the Finance Director, was appointed Town 
Manager; and 
 
WHEREAS, in November, 2014 Julia Henze was appointed Finance Director; and 
 
WHEREAS, effective January, 2015, John Eldridge, as Tax Collector, has provided tax lists for the 
balance due on all outstanding taxes; and 
 
WHEREAS, effective January, 2015, Julia Henze was appointed Tax Collector of the Town of 
Brunswick; and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to 36 MRSA §763, the Town Council (“Council”) is permitted to accept the 
Tax Collector’s resignation, and to discharge the former Tax Collector from further liability or 
obligation to collect the balance due on outstanding taxes; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council may recommit outstanding taxes to a new collector, to collect the sums due 
thereon, with the same power in their collection as the original tax collector; and 
 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Town Council accepts the resignation of John 
Eldridge as Tax Collector of the Town of Brunswick and discharges him from further liability or 
obligation to collect the balance due on outstanding taxes. 
 
BET IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Town Council recommits the outstanding tax lists to Julia 
Henze. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Chair of the Town Council, representing the Town Council, 
is authorized to complete the necessary certificates of settlement of the outstanding tax lists with John 
Eldridge, former Tax Collector. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Chair of the Town Council, representing the Town Council, 
is authorized to complete the necessary certificates of recommitment of the outstanding tax lists with 
Julia Henze, Tax Collector. 
 
 
Proposed to Town Council – February 2, 2015 
Adopted by Town Council –  



 
 

 
ITEM 14 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



O:\Word\Agendas & Minutes\Councilrules&Policy\Proposed amendments to the Council rules February 2nd 2015.docx 

DRAFT 
 
Proposed amendments to the Council rules 
RULES OF ORDER AND PROCEDURE FOR BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 
 28. Order of Business 
 
  The business of all regular meetings of the Town Council shall be transacted in the 

following order, unless the Town Council changes the order: 
 

(1) Roll Call of Members 
(2) Acknowledge Notice 
(3) Executive Session (if necessary) 
(4) Pledge of Allegiance 
(5) Adjustment to Agenda 
(6) Public Comments 
(7) Correspondense 
(8) Committee Reports 
(9) Manager’s Report 
(10) Consent Agenda 
(11) Hearings 
(12) Tabled Matters 
(13) New Business 
(14) Consent Agenda 

   
 
 42. Procedure 
 
  Ordinances, except emergency measures, shall not be passed until they have been read on 

two separate days at regular or special meetings of the Town Council unless this 
requirement is dispensed with by the affirmative vote of at least 6 Town Councilors.  
Each reading shall be by title only, but on request of two or more Town Councilors, the 
second reading shall be section by section for as many sections as are requested.  On the 
passage of every ordinance or resolution, the vote shall be taken by yeas or nays and 
entered in full upon the record.  Every Town Councilor shall be required to vote, unless 
excused for cause by vote of the Town Council.  The vote shall be for or against a 
pending ordinance or resolution and not on the report of the committee thereon. 

    
 A. Public Hearing on Ordinances   
 
 1) Before an ordinance is enacted, amended or repealed the Town Council shall 

hold a public hearing, notice of which must be published in a newspaper 
having general circulation in the Town at least 10 days before the hearing 
date.  The text of the intended act must be included in the notice where it is 
reasonable to do so, in the opinion of the Town Council.  Otherwise, the 
notice must contain a reasonable summary of the purpose of the intended act.  
In either case, a reasonable number of copies of the proposed ordinance must 



O:\Word\Agendas & Minutes\Councilrules&Policy\Proposed amendments to the Council rules February 2nd 2015.docx 

be made available to the public at the office of the Manager for at least 10 
days before the hearing date. 

 
Public hearing process: 
 
The Town Council will conduct the public hearing by reading the item, opening 
the public hearing, testimony, and closing the public hearing.  Once the public 
hearing is opened, the sponsor or appropriate staff person will introduce the item, 
and comments will be allowed from both the public and Council, with an 
opportunity for responses from questions.  Once the public hearing is closed, the 
Council will determine if any action is necessary as allowed under the Council 
rules and the Town Charter, but the Council is encouraged to postpone action 
until a future meeting to allow for the consideration of the public comments.   

 
 2) An ordinance becomes effective 30 days after passage unless the ordinance is 

adopted on an emergency basis. 
 



 
 

CONSENT AGENDA - A 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



 

 

Draft 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Minutes 
January 20, 2015 

6:30 P.M. – Executive Session 
7:00 P.M. 

Council Chambers 
Town Hall 

85 Union Street 
 
Councilors Present: W. David Watson, Stephen S. Walker, Suzan Wilson, John M. Perreault, 

Daniel E. Harris, Jane F. Millett, Sarah E. Brayman, Katherine E. Wilson, 
and John Richardson, Jr. 

 
Councilors Absent: None 
 
Town Staff Present: John S. Eldridge, III, Town Manager; Fran Smith, Town Clerk/Assistant 

to the Town Manager; Steve Langsdorf, Town Attorney; Linda Smith, 
Business Development Manager; Mark Waltz, Police Commander; Terry 
Goan, Police Officer; and TV video crew 

 
Chair Brayman called the meeting to order, asked the Clerk for roll call, and acknowledged that 
the meeting was properly noticed. 
 
Executive Session: Property Acquisition [1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(C)] 
 
Councilor Millett moved, Councilor Harris seconded, to go into executive session to discuss 
Property Acquisition per 1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(C).  The motion carried with nine (9) yeas.  
 
MEETING RESUMED AT 7:15 P.M. 
 
Chair Brayman resumed the meeting and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Public Comment (This item was discussed at 7:13 p.m.) 
 
Nelia Dunbar, 54 Pennell Way, spoke regarding the train fare deal of $15.00 for a trip to Boston 
for a limited period of time. 
 
(A copy of two articles will be attached to the official minutes.)  
 
Ethan Minton, Midcoast Hunger Prevention, spoke regarding the organization and what 
services they provide.  In 2014, they provided over 41,000 meals, along with a food mobile and 
the backpack program. 
 
Jim Trusiani, 6 Pleasant Street, spoke about the budget and the difficult process this year; with a 
loss of funds from the State, the Town will be behind $1 million before they begin. 
 
 
 



Town Council Minutes 
January 20, 2015 
Page 2 
 

 
 

Correspondence  (This item was discussed at 7:24 p.m.) 
 
Councilor Millett received an email from a citizen requesting the town hire a technically trained 
person for facility management. 
 
Adjustments to the Agenda 
 
To postpone item 8 and to move the Consent Agenda to after the Manager’s Report. 
 
Council Committee Updates 
 
A report was given regarding the Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee and Sharrow 
Rows on Federal Street. 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT  
 
a) Financial Update (This item was discussed at 7:27 p.m.) 
 
Manager Eldridge provided this update.   
 
b) Update on the DEP Public Hearing on the Train Layover Facility  (This item was 

discussed at 7:31 p.m.) 
 
Manager Eldridge provided this update. 
 
c) Reminder of dog license renewals  (This item was discussed at 7:34 p.m.) 
 
Fran Smith, Town Clerk, provided this update. 
 
d) (ADDED) Reminder of Conservation Commission workshop on Feb 5th (This item was 

discussed at 7:35 p.m.) 
 
CONSENT AGENDA DONE NEXT 7:35 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
3. The Town Council will hear public comments on an application for a CDBG grant 

under the MicroEnterprise Program for Blue Dog Daycare for a project at 
Brunswick Landing, and will take any appropriate action.  (Manager)   (This item 
was discussed at 7:42 p.m.) 

 
Chair Brayman opened the public hearing. 
 
Linda Smith, Business Development Manager, presented this item and responded to a question 
from Councilor Perreault. 
 



Town Council Minutes 
January 20, 2015 
Page 3 
 

 
 

Councilor Richardson spoke regarding this item. 
 
Chair Brayman closed the public hearing.  
 
MOTION: 
Councilor K. Wilson moved, Councilor Millett seconded, to adopt a “Council Resolution – 
Micro-Enterprise Assistance Program” for Blue Dog Day Care. 
 
Councilor Harris, Councilor Millett, and Councilor K. Wilson spoke regarding this item. 
 
Councilor Perreault asked a question, to which Ms. Smith responded. 
 
VOTE ON MOTION: 
Councilor K. Wilson moved, Councilor Millett seconded, to adopt a “Council Resolution – 
Micro-Enterprise Assistance Program” for Blue Dog Day Care.  The motion carried with 
nine (9) yeas. 
 
(A copy of supporting material including the Resolution will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
4. The Town Council will hear public comments on a special amusement license 

application, and will take any appropriate action. (Manager)  (This item was 
discussed at 7:52 p.m.) 

 
Special Amusement 
Brunswick Lodge of Elks #2043 
D/B/A: Brunswick Lodge of Elks  Ms. Angela Brackett 
179 Park Row 

 
Chair Brayman opened public hearing. 
 
Town Clerk Fran Smith introduced this item. 
 
Jim Trusiani, 6 Pleasant Street, spoke regarding this item. 
 
Chair Brayman closed the public hearing.  
 
Councilor Watson moved, Councilor Perreault seconded, to approve the special 
amusement license for Brunswick Lodge of Elk’s #2043, located at 179 Park Row.  The 
motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
5. The Town Council will consider options for parking limitations on sections of Page 

Street, and will take any appropriate action.  (Councilor Millett)  (This item was 
discussed at 7:56 p.m.) 

 



Town Council Minutes 
January 20, 2015 
Page 4 
 

 
 

Councilor Millett introduced this item. 
 
MOTION: 
Councilor Millett moved, Councilor Harris seconded, to enact an ordinance to prevent 
overnight parking on Page Street except with a residential parking permit. 
 
Emily Swan, Page Street, spoke regarding this item.  
 
(A copy of a petition from the Page Street residents will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
Attorney Langsdorf and Manager Eldridge spoke regarding this item. 
 
Councilor Walker asked a question, to which Mr. Eldridge and Ms. Swan responded.  
 
Councilor Millett spoke and asked questions, to which Commander Waltz responded. 
 
Councilor Perreault spoke and asked questions, to which Mr. Eldridge responded.   
 
Councilor Richardson requested information be gathered prior to the next meeting. 
 
The following members of the public spoke regarding this item. 

Robert Cardali, 11C Page Street, 
Helen Small, 103 Union Street,  
Richard Fisco, 2 Lincoln Street 
Joe Ciarrocca, 532 Harpswell Road 
Steve Perkinson, 6 Page Street 
Jim Trusiani, 6 Pleasant Street 

 
Mr. Eldridge and Commander Waltz spoke regarding this item. 
 
Councilor S. Wilson, Councilor Millett, Councilor Walker, and Councilor Perreault spoke 
regarding this item.  
 
Councilor Millett and Councilor Harris withdrew their original motion.  
 
The Council discussed doing a Police order temporary overnight parking ban, along with Public 
Works posting and cleaning the street. 
 
Councilor Millett moved, Councilor Walker seconded, to set a public hearing for February 
2nd to consider an amendment to Chapter 15 of the Code of Ordinances (Traffic and 
Vehicles) to restrict overnight parking on Page Street between the hours of 1:00 AM and 
6:00 AM to parking by residential permit, the amendment to be adopted on an emergency 
and regular basis. 
 
Councilor Richardson spoke regarding this motion. 
 



Town Council Minutes 
January 20, 2015 
Page 5 
 

 
 

Councilor Watson asked a question, to which Commander Waltz responded. 
 
VOTE ON MOTION: 
Councilor Millett moved, Councilor Walker seconded, to set a public hearing for February 
2nd to consider an amendment to Chapter 15 of the Code of Ordinances (Traffic and 
Vehicles) to restrict overnight parking on Page Street between the hours of 1:00 AM and 
6:00 AM to parking by residential permit, the amendment to be adopted on an emergency 
and regular basis.  The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
6. The Town Council will consider approving the “Agreement for Town Attorney 

Services” between the Town of Brunswick and Preti Flaherty for legal services for 
2015, and will take any appropriate action. (Councilor Brayman)  (This item was 
discussed at 8:55 p.m.) 

 
Chair Brayman introduced this item. 
 
MOTION: 
Councilor Richardson moved, Councilor Walker seconded, to approve the “Agreement for 
Town Attorney Services” between the Town of Brunswick and Preti Flaherty for legal 
services for 2015 as attached to the permanent record. 
 
Councilor Harris and Councilor Perreault asked questions, to which Mr. Eldridge responded. 
 
Attorney Langsdorf spoke regarding this item. 
 
Councilor Harris, Councilor S. Wilson, Councilor K. Wilson, and Councilor Millett spoke 
regarding this item. 
 
VOTE ON MOTION: 
Councilor Richardson moved, Councilor Walker seconded, to approve the “Agreement for 
Town Attorney Services” between the Town of Brunswick and Preti Flaherty for legal 
services for 2015 as attached to the permanent record.  The motion carried with nine (9) 
yeas. 
 
7. The Town Council will discuss changes to the Council Rules of Order and 

Procedure relative to order of agenda items, expanding consent agenda, and public 
hearing procedures, and will determine if any future action is necessary.  (Manager)  
(This item was discussed at 9:07 p.m.) 

 
Chair Brayman introduced this item, with Manager Eldridge providing further information.  
 
This item will come back to the Council at the February 2nd meeting. 
 
8. The Town Council will discuss adjustments to pay for non-union employees, and 

will take any appropriate action. (Manager)   
 



Town Council Minutes 
January 20, 2015 
Page 6 
 

 
 

This item was removed from the agenda. 
 
9. The Town Council Chair will make Council appointments to the following 

committees:  (This item was discussed at 9:10 p.m.) 
 Appointment Sub-committee 
 Brunswick Development Corporation (1 member) 
 Captain Fitzgerald Recreation & Conservation Committee 
 Downtown and Outer Pleasant Street Master Plan Implementation 

Committee  
      Recycling & Sustainability Committee  
 Solid Waste Task Force Committee 

 
Chair Brayman made the following appointments: 

Appointment Sub-committee: Councilor Harris, Councilor K. Wilson and Councilor 
Millett  
Brunswick Development Corporation: Councilor K. Wilson  
Captain Fitzgerald Recreation & Conservation Committee:  Councilor Watson and 
Councilor Walker  
Downtown and Outer Pleasant Street Master Plan Implementation Committee:  Councilor 
Millett and Councilor K. Wilson  
Recycling & Sustainability Committee:  Councilor Walker  
Solid Waste Task Force Committee:  Councilor Perreault, Councilor Walker, and 
Councilor S. Wilson  

 
CONSENT AGENDA  (This item was discussed at 7:36 p.m. as it was done after the 
Manager’s Report)  

a) Approval of the Minutes of December 15, 2014 
b) Approval of the Minutes of January 5, 2015 
c) Approval of Games of Chance for Elks’ Lodge #2043 
d) Approval of the “Resolution authorizing the Town Treasurer to waive foreclosure 

on certain real estate tax lien mortgages” 
e) Annual permission to allow the Marine Resource Committee the authority to open 

and close coastal waters  
f) Permission to accept and expend the 2014-15 Byrne Grant in the amount of 

$6,916.00 
g) Permission to accept and expend the Cumberland County EMA Grant in the 

amount of $19,447.20. 
 
Councilor Perreault requested items CA-F and CA-G be considered separately. 
 
Councilor Richardson moved, Councilor Walker seconded, to approve the remainder of 
the Consent Agenda (CA-A through CA-E).  The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
CA- F 
Commander Waltz addressed the Council on this item. 



Town Council Minutes 
January 20, 2015 
Page 7 
 

 
 

 
Councilor Watson moved, Councilor Walker seconded, to give permission to accept and 
expend the 2014-15 Byrne Grant in the amount of $6,916.00.  The motion carried with nine 
(9) yeas. 
 
CA-G 
Commander Waltz addressed the Council on this item and responded to a question from 
Councilor Harris. 
 
Councilor Watson moved, Councilor Millett seconded, to give permission to accept and 
expend the Cumberland County EMA Grant in the amount of $19,447.20.  The motion 
carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
Councilor Watson moved, Councilor Millett seconded, to adjourn the meeting.  The motion 
carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:12 pm. 
 
PLEASE NOTE:  THESE MINUTES ARE ACTION MINUTES.  THE ENTIRE 
MEETING CAN BE VIEWED AT WWW.BRUNSWICKME.ORG.  
 
 
 
 
 
Frances M. Smith 
Town Clerk 
January 7, 2015 
 

January 20, 2015 
Date of Approval 

 

___________________________ 
Council Chair 



 
 

CONSENT AGENDA - B 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



 

 
 
       December 17, 2014 
 
Fran Smith 
Town Clerk 
Brunswick Town Hall 
85 Union Street 
Brunswick, Maine 04011 
 
Dear Ms. Smith, 
 
I am writing to request permission for Pejepscot Historical Society to use the Maine Street Mall and 
Gazebo on August 7–9, 2015 for our biennial Chamberlain Days event. I have previously submitted 
the official space request form to your office. 
 
To commemorate the end of the Civil War Sesquicentennial (1861–1865 / 2011–2015), we are 
planning a particularly vibrant Chamberlain Days celebration for August 2015. Our plans are 
centered around the theme of “Brunswick in the Time of Chamberlain,” which we hope will engage 
local residents and visitors to Brunswick in equal measure. We plan to offer include a keynote 
address by a prominent historian, performances of Americana music, a play written by a local 
resident, and an encampment by two or three Civil War reenactor groups. I have a firm commitment 
from one of these groups; they’d like to set up camp on the mall, as they have done in years past, 
and present different vignettes of life during the Civil War throughout the weekend (medical 
services, commerce, music, cooking, etc.). 
 
As it has during Chamberlain Days in years past, the reenactors’ participation would involve 
spending the night on the mall—likely both Friday and Saturday nights (8/7 and 8/8). Our request 
for use of the space includes permission for these overnights as well as permission for the reenactors 
to dig a small pit for a campfire (which they would repair and recover with sod after use) and to fire 
black powder (blanks) from their muskets during daytime demonstrations. This permission has been 
kindly granted by the Town in the past, and we would be most grateful to receive it again in 2015. 
 
We would also be deeply grateful if the Town would waive the $500 event fee for Chamberlain 
Days, as it has done in years past. We will be stretching our resources to their limit in order to 
provide the most robust, engaging, and comfortable experience possible for our guests, and a waiver 
of this fee would be a tremendous help.  
 
We are thrilled to offer this programming to the citizens of Brunswick and to visitors to our 
community. Thank you for considering our request. If I can provide any additional information, 
please don’t hesitate to contact me. 
 
       Yours sincerely, 
 
       Jennifer Blanchard 
       Executive Director 



 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA - C 
BACK UP MATERIALS 



 
   

                                                                              Office Located At: 
                                                                                                                                                                      Central Maine Commerce Center 

                                                                                                                                                                      45 Commerce Dr, Suite 1 

                                                                                                                                             Augusta, ME 04330 
                                                                                                                                                            Phone: (207) 626-3840      Fax: (207) 287-3042 

 Buckle Up. Drive Safely. 

STATE OF MAINE 
Department of Public Safety 

Bureau of Highway Safety 
164 State House Station 

Augusta, Maine 

04333-0164 

 

 

January 5, 2015 

 

Dear Law Enforcement Partners, 

 

Alcohol and speed continue to be leading causes of motor vehicle crashes and fatalities on Maine 

roads.  In 2013, alcohol related fatalities totaled 35 and speed related fatalities totaled more than 

49. Combined alcohol and speed accounted for 84 of the 144 fatalities, about 60%.  Although our 

fatal crash numbers are lower for 2014, we still need to focus on these two issues.  

 

To help meet our goal of decreasing alcohol and speed related crashes, the Maine Bureau of 

Highway Safety will help agencies to purchase police traffic enforcement equipment related to 

alcohol and speed detection. The intent of this program is to encourage agencies to focus on 

impaired driving and speed statewide. 

 

We are pleased to offer you a reimbursement, not to exceed $10,000.00, for the purchase of 

traffic enforcement equipment.  The bureau will reimburse each department 75% of the total cost 

expended by you, provided you did not use any other federal funds to pay for it For example if a 

department chooses to purchase $10,000.00 of equipment from the approved list, MeBHS will 

reimburse that department $7,500.00 of the total $10,000.00 that the department spent.  As a 

reminder, no one piece of equipment may exceed $5,000 in cost. 

 

All equipment must be purchased directly through each vendor associated with the attached 

approved equipment list. Law enforcement agencies will be responsible for buying the 

equipment and must submit an original paid invoice from the vendor, and proof of payment to 

verify that it was not paid using federal funds.   

 

The following companies have partnered with the bureau to offer this equipment:  

 

Applied Concepts, Inc. – Stalker 

Decatur Electronics, Inc. 

Kustom Signals, Inc. 

Laser Technologies, Inc. 

WatchGuard Video  

 

*The State of Maine is a partner in the WSCA-NASPO Cooperative Agreement and because of 

this agreement, it is important that your department indicate this upon ordering to ensure that you 

receive the negotiated discounted pricing for all approved equipment with Applied Concepts Inc, 

Decatur Electronics, Kustom Signals, or Laser Technologies.  

 

Paul R. LePage 

Governor 

John E. Morris 

Commissioner 

Lauren V. Stewart 

 Director 



 
   

                                                                              Office Located At: 
                                                                                                                                                                      Central Maine Commerce Center 

                                                                                                                                                                      45 Commerce Dr, Suite 1 

                                                                                                                                             Augusta, ME 04330 
                                                                                                                                                            Phone: (207) 626-3840      Fax: (207) 287-3042 

 Buckle Up. Drive Safely. 

Attachment 1 provides you with information about each vendor and shows the available 

equipment. Attachment 2 is the Bureau’s cash reimbursement request form that your department 

will complete when submitting for reimbursement. 

 

Reimbursement Instructions: 

 

When requesting reimbursement for purchased equipment agencies must provide the 

original invoice that was received from the vendor showing the purchase of the equipment. 

The invoice must show that the equipment has been paid.  

 

Departments must include documentation that city/town funds were used to purchase the 

equipment. MeBHS will not provide reimbursement for equipment paid for by federal 

funds.  

 

Lastly the original invoice and documentation showing the original purchases were made 

with city/town funds must be accompanied with the MeBHS cash reimbursement form. 

The cash reimbursement form is provided in the accompanying email. 

 

If you have any questions regarding this program, please contact our office at 207-626-3840. 

 

 

Sincerely, 

 
Lauren V. Stewart, Director 

Maine Bureau of Highway Safety 

 

 


	mr a to c NO
	10 yes
	10  Page ST Parking Changes with Emergency Language - Rev
	10 2 Page ST Parking Memo
	10 Parking Restriction for streets near Page Street Revised
	10 Page Street - Dwelling Units 1
	11 yes
	11 1_28 RCWC_TC_LTR
	11 Chapter 11 Article 1 Final 1.28.15
	12 yes
	12 Chapter 12 Vacation Policy 2-2015
	13 yes
	13 a Tax Collector memo
	13 b Tax Collector
	14 yes
	15 yes
	15 Proposed amendments to the Council rules February 2nd 2015
	ca a yes
	ca a Jan 20 2015 minutes
	ca b yes
	CA B consent agenda 121714 Mall request
	ca c yes
	ca c 2015 Equipment Announcement

